
           
The City of Muskogee encourages participation from all its citizens in public meetings. If participation is not possible due to a disability,
notify the City Clerk, in writing, at least forty-eight hours prior to the scheduled meeting and necessary accommodations will be made (ADA
28 CFR/36).

(Public Comment during Public Hearing or Agenda item comment)

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments on agenda items and public hearings to five (5) minutes and general comments for
non-agenda items to (3) minutes.. Any person desiring to address the Committee during such period is required to sign in with the City Clerk
prior to the Committee meeting between 5:00 p.m. and 5:15 p.m. on the third floor of City Hall or any time between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. in
the Office of the City Clerk, They shall provide their name, address and specify the agenda item they wish to address. Remarks shall be
directed to the matter being considered and the speaker is allowed to speak only one time. If written materials are to be submitted twelve (12)
copies should be made available, and may not be returned.
 

Agenda
Finance Committee

May 21, 2018
5:30 P.M. - City Council Chambers

 
MAYOR BOB COBURN TO RECOGNIZE RANDALL HULL AS EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH FOR
MAY 2018

 

           
1. Consider approval of Finance Committee minutes of May 7, 2018.
 

2. Consider approval of claims for all City departments May 3, 2018 through May 15, 2018.
 

3. Consider approval of lowest bids for the following road material:  Number sixty-seven (67)
Wash Rock, 3" Pit Run, 12" Pit Run, and number two (2) Cover Material to Kemp Quarries and
Limestone Screenings to Kemp Quarries; Asphalt Sand Alternate number one (1) and Fill Sand
Alternate number two (2) to Muskogee Sand; Asphaltic Concrete-Type B & C Alternate number
one (1)  to Tulsa Asphalt;  and alternate number two (2) to Robert's Quarries; and alternate
number three (3) to Tulsa Asphalt; Hot-Cold Patching Material to Tulsa Asphalt; 1 1/2"
Aggregate Base to Kemp Quarries, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

 

4. Consider approval of the lowest bids as follows: (a) 3500 psi at $85.00 per cubic yards; (b) 3500
psi High Early concrete at $90.00 per cubic yards; (c) 3000 psi at $84.00 per cubic yards; (d)
Portland Dry Mason at $70.00 per sack; (e) Flow Fill at $60.00 per cubic yards; (f) City Pay
Dray at $60.00 all to Muskogee Ready Mix, all for FY 2018/2019, or take other necessary
action. (Greg Riley)

 



   
Finance Committee 1.           
Meeting Date: 05/21/2018  
Initiator: Ashley Wallace, Office Adm 1
Department: City Clerk
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of Finance Committee minutes of May 7, 2018.

BACKGROUND:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
05-07-2018 finmin 



MINUTES
FINANCE COMMITTEE

May 7, 2018

The Finance Committee of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, met at 5:30 p.m. on Monday, May 7, 2018 in Council Chambers, Third Floor,
Municipal Building, with the following in attendance:

Present: Mayor John R. Coburn; Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston; Committee Member Patrick Cale;
Committee Member Jaime Stout; Committee Member Marlon Coleman; Committee Member
Dan Hall; Committee Member Wayne Johnson; Committee Member Derrick Reed 

Absent: Committee Member Ivory Vann 

Staff
Present:

Mike Miller, City Manager; Mike Stewart, Assistant City Manager; Roy Tucker, City
Attorney; Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk; Gary Garvin, City Planner; Greg Riley, Public Works
Director; Matthew Beese, Assistant City Attorney; Michael O'Dell, Fire Chief; Kelly Plunkett,
Human Resources Director; Rex Eskridge, Police Chief; Marcie Gilliam, Strategic Financial
Analyst; Brooke Hall, Assistant Director Parks and Recreation; Chad Farmer, Deputy Police
Chief; Tish Callahan, Assistant Planning Director; Tyler Evans, Police Officer 

 

               
1. Consider approval of Finance Committee minutes of April 16, 2018.   
 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Wayne Johnson, seconded by Deputy

Mayor Janey Boydston to approve Finance Committee Minutes of April 16, 2018. 

  AYE: Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member Jaime Stout, Committee
Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Marlon Coleman, Committee
Member Dan Hall, Committee Member Wayne Johnson, Committee Member
Derrick Reed 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
2. Consider approval of claims for all City departments April 12, 2018 through May 2, 2018.

Mayor Bob Coburn entered the meeting at 5:37 p.m.

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Wayne Johnson, seconded by Committee

Member Patrick Cale to approve claims for all City departments April 12, 2018
through May 2, 2018. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Marlon
Coleman, Committee Member Dan Hall, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
3. Consider approval of the Groupon Merchant Agreement for marketing and promotional   



3. Consider approval of the Groupon Merchant Agreement for marketing and promotional
services at River Country Family Water Park, or take other necessary action. (Mark
Wilkerson)

Assistant Parks and Recreation Director Brooke Hall stated Groupon is a deal-of-the-day
recommendation service for consumers which broadcasts an electronic coupon
recommending a local service while also offering a 40% to 60% discount if with
purchase of service.

Groupon is a middleman service that promotes local restaurants, stores, and entertainment
venues. Groupon encourages people to try different restaurants or stores each day, and
earns a commission whenever they successfully refer a customer.

Under this agreement, River Country receives a portion of the revenue when Groupon
sells the discount tickets. Under the proposed contract, 556 tickets will be reserved.
Assuming all tickets are sold, the face value of all tickets is $6,069.00; Groupon will
receive $2,790.00, leaving the City to receive $3,279.00.

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Marlon Coleman, seconded by Deputy

Mayor Janey Boydston to approve a Groupon Merchant Agreement for marketing and
promotional services at River Country Family Water Park. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Marlon
Coleman, Committee Member Dan Hall, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
4. Consider approval of Ordinance No. 4044-A amending the City of Muskogee Code of

Ordinances, Chapter 58, Parks and Recreation, Section 58-21, Fees Generally;
Authorizing the City Manager to Establish or Modify certain fees; providing for
Repealer, Severability, and Setting an Effective Date, or take other necessary
action. (Mike Stewart)

Assistant City Manager Mike Stewart stated City Council approves fees for City services,
but occasionally some of the park enterprise funds need the flexibility to respond to
market demand. This ordinance allows for the City Manager, or his designee, to set fees
for participation in special events, activities, and programs.  Examples might be: fees for a
new type of exercise class, a promotional pricing for membership, or season passes. The
Council would be notified of these fees within ten (10) days of adoption.

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Wayne Johnson, seconded by Committee

Member Patrick Cale to approve Ordinance No. 4044-A amending the City of
Muskogee Code of Ordinances, Chapter 58, Parks and Recreation, Section 58-21,
Fees Generally; Authorizing the City Manager to Establish or Modify certain fees;
providing for Repealer, Severability, and Setting an Effective Date. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member



  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Marlon
Coleman, Committee Member Dan Hall, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
5. Consider approval of final payment for Muskogee Project No. 2017023, Pollution Control

Basket Screen, to KBC Construction in the amount of $16,067.35, or take other necessary
action.  (Greg Riley)

Public Works Director Greg Riley stated KBC Construction has submitted all information
necessary to close out this project which has been accepted as complete and satisfactory to
the City.  This is the final payment to KBC Construction for the Basket Screen Project. 
This project was funded as part of the OWRB Loan.

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Wayne Johnson, seconded by Committee

Member Jaime Stout  to approve final payment for Muskogee Project No. 2017023,
Pollution Control Basket Screen, to KBC Construction in the amount of $16,067.35. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Marlon
Coleman, Committee Member Dan Hall, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
6. Consider approval of the contract Change Order and Final Payment to Dirt Work Done

Right, LLC, for the Demolition Contract 16756 CDBG 16 Bid Group 38, in the amount
of $1,375.00, or take other necessary action. (Tish Callahan)

Assistant Planning Director Tish Callahan stated Bid Group 38 was awarded to Dirt Work
Done Right, LLC in the amount of $2.50 per square foot. The project consisted of the
demolition and removal of remaining debris for nineteen (19) structures. The total
contract cost was $108,756.50 for an average cost of $5,724.00/structure. All properties
have received a final inspection and are approved for final payment.  The Change Order
request is for the contract extension due to weather and utility disconnect delays.

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Wayne Johnson, seconded by Mayor John

R. Coburn to approve the contract Change Order and Final Payment to Dirt Work
Done Right, LLC, for the Demolition Contract 16756 CDBG 16 Bid Group 38, in the
amount of $1,375.00. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Marlon
Coleman, Committee Member Dan Hall, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
7. Consider approval of awarding the mowing contracts as follows: Base Bid No. One (1) ,   



7. Consider approval of awarding the mowing contracts as follows: Base Bid No. One (1) ,
No. Two (2) and No. Five (5) to SB Services; Base Bid No. Three (3) and No. Four (4) to
Grass Monkey; and the Turnpike Mowing Contract to D & D Ag Services, or take other
necessary action. (Greg Riley)

Public Works Director Greg Riley stated this item is for contractual mowing of drainage
easements.  Public Works has contracted these services for the last several years.  Last
year the City started contracting the Turnpike Mowing to allow for more use of our
forces in other areas of the City.  The drainage channel mowing is paid with Storm Water
Funds.  The Turnpike Mowing is being paid through contractual services. 

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Wayne Johnson, seconded by Committee

Member Patrick Cale to approve awarding the mowing contracts as follows: Base Bid
No. One (1) , No. Two (2) and No. Five (5) to SB Services; Base Bid No. Three (3)
and No. Four (4) to Grass Monkey; and the Turnpike Mowing Contract to D & D Ag
Services. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Marlon
Coleman, Committee Member Dan Hall, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
8. Consider approval authorizing the Mayor to cast a ballot on behalf of the City of

Muskogee for the OMAG Board of Trustees, or take other necessary action. (Mike Miller)

City Manager Mike Miller stated The Oklahoma Municipal Assurance Group (OMAG) 
is the primary provider of insurance and risk management solutions for 500 Oklahoma
cities and towns, including Muskogee.

OMAG is governed by a seven (7) member Board of Trustees. Each Trustee must be an
elected or appointed official of an OMAG Member Municipality.  Member cities,
including Muskogee, are asked to vote on open board positions, and this year there are
two (2) positions coming open.

  

 
  Motion was made by Committee Member Dan Hall, seconded by Deputy Mayor

Janey Boydston to approve authorizing the Mayor to cast a ballot on behalf of the City
of Muskogee for the OMAG Board of Trustees. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Marlon
Coleman, Committee Member Dan Hall, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
9. Consider approval to update the Muskogee 2020 Strategic Plan as discussed at the April   



9. Consider approval to update the Muskogee 2020 Strategic Plan as discussed at the April
20, 2018, Special Call Council meeting, or take other necessary action. (Mike Miller)

City Manager Mike Miller stated in 2014, the City prepared and adopted a five (5) year
strategic plan. Annually this plan is reviewed for progress and modifications or additions
if needed.  The plan was reviewed with Council at the April 20, 2018, Special Call
meeting and two (2) items were added under Economic Development:

Strategic Item 2 - Achieve Retail and Housing Development - 2a. Attract housing
development - Analyze, develop, propose and implement polices that promote and attract
new housing development and increase Muskogee's population.

Strategic Item 4 - Infrastructure & Public Works, an item 4e was added - 4e. Streets-Have
Street Committee review and revise five (5) and ten (10) year street plans, and
communicate funding needs to 1.) maintain current street quality and 2.) bring forward
funding proposals for not only maintaining current levels but also improving street
maintenance.

  

 
  Motion was made by Mayor John R. Coburn, seconded by Deputy Mayor Janey

Boydston to approve the Muskogee 2020 Strategic Plan as discussed at the April 20,
2018 Special Call Council meeting. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Marlon
Coleman, Committee Member Dan Hall, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
10. Consider approval of receiving donated funds for the month of March 2018, in the

amount of $409.00 for the City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Program as per the attached
list, or take other necessary action. (Rex Eskridge)

  

 
  Motion was made by Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, seconded by Committee

Member Dan Hall to approve receiving donated funds for the month of March 2018,
in the amount of $409.00 for the City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Program as per
the attached list. 

  AYE: Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor Janey Boydston, Committee Member
Jaime Stout, Committee Member Patrick Cale, Committee Member Marlon
Coleman, Committee Member Dan Hall, Committee Member Wayne
Johnson, Committee Member Derrick Reed 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
 

CHAIRMAN DERRICK REED
FINANCE COMMITTEE
finmin
TT/aw





   
Finance Committee 2.           
Meeting Date: 05/21/2018  
Initiator: Donnie Wimbley, Purchasing Director
Department: Purchasing
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of claims for all City departments May 3, 2018 through May 15, 2018.

BACKGROUND:
Claims List for all City Departments.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve of the claims for all City Departments May 3, 2018 through May 15, 2018.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Claims List 





















   
Finance Committee 3.           
Meeting Date: 05/21/2018  
Submitted For:  Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Christy Byrd, Office

Administrator I
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley; Director of Public Works, Jim Wixom; Assistant Director of

Public Works-Operations; Donnie Wimbley, Purchasing Director 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of lowest bids for the following road material:  Number sixty-seven (67) Wash Rock,
3" Pit Run, 12" Pit Run, and number two (2) Cover Material to Kemp Quarries and Limestone
Screenings to Kemp Quarries; Asphalt Sand Alternate number one (1) and Fill Sand Alternate number
two (2) to Muskogee Sand; Asphaltic Concrete-Type B & C Alternate number one (1)  to Tulsa
Asphalt;  and alternate number two (2) to Robert's Quarries; and alternate number three (3) to Tulsa
Asphalt; Hot-Cold Patching Material to Tulsa Asphalt; 1 1/2" Aggregate Base to Kemp Quarries, or take
other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

BACKGROUND:
The Public Works-Street Division solicited bids for Road Materials for repair and Maintenance
projects.  Bid Documents and Bid Tab Sheets are attached for reference.  These prices will remain firm
for a period of one (1) year beginning with fiscal year 2018-2019.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve lowest bids for the following road material:  Number sixty seven (67) Wash Rock, 3" Pit Run,
12" Pit Run, and number two (2) Cover Material to Kemp Quarries and Limestone Screenings to Kemp
Quarries, Asphalt Sand Alternate number one (1) and Fill Sand Alternate number two (2) to Muskogee
Sand; Asphaltic Concrete-Type B & C  Alternate number one (1)  to Tulsa Asphalt  and alternate
number two (2) to Robert's Quarries and alternate number three (3) to Tulsa Asphalt; Hot-Cold Patching
Material to Tulsa Asphalt; 1 1/2" Aggregate Base to Kemp Quarries

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:
Street/Alley Miscellaneous Operation Supply.  Account Number 211-6030-431-52-90.

Attachments
2017-2018 
2018-2019 















   
Finance Committee 4.           
Meeting Date: 05/21/2018  
Submitted For:  Greg Riley, Public Works  Initiator: Christy Byrd, Office

Administrator I
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley, Director of Public Works; Jim Wixom, Assistant Director of

Public Works-Operations; Donnie Wimbley, Purchasing Director 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of the lowest bids as follows: (a) 3500 psi at $85.00 per cubic yards; (b) 3500 psi
High Early concrete at $90.00 per cubic yards; (c) 3000 psi at $84.00 per cubic yards; (d) Portland Dry
Mason at $70.00 per sack; (e) Flow Fill at $60.00 per cubic yards; (f) City Pay Dray at $60.00 all to
Muskogee Ready Mix, all for FY 2018/2019, or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

BACKGROUND:
The Public Works - Street Division solicited annual bids for Concrete for repair for Maintenance
projects.  Bid tab sheets are attached for your reference.  These prices will remain for a period of one (1)
year beginning with Fiscal year 2018-2019.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the lowest bids as follows: (a) 3500 psi concrete at $85.00 per cubic yards, (b) 3500 psi High
Early concrete at $90.00 per cubic yards, (c) 3000 psi concrete at $84.00 per cubic yards, (d) Portland
Dry Mason at $70.00 per sack, (e) Flow Fill at $60.00 per cubic yards, (f) City Pay Dray at $60.00 to
Muskogee Ready Mix for fiscal year 2018/2019.

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:
Street/Alley Miscellaneous Operation Supply.  Account #211-6030-431-52-90.

Attachments
2017-2018 
2018-2019 






	Agenda
	_1.   _1.__7363
	    05-07-2018 finmin
	_2.   _2.__7347
	    Claims List
	_3.   _3._Consider approval of lowest bids for Road Materials
	    2017-2018
	    2018-2019
	_4.   _4._Consider approval of lowest bids for concrete for 2018_2019 Street repairs to Muskogee Ready Mix
	    2017-2018
	    2018-2019

